
  
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

SCHOOL ORGANISATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
 

Thursday, 8th October, 2009, at 10.30 am Ask for: Geoff Mills/Karen 
Mannering 

Council Chamber, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone 

  

 Telephone (01622) 
694289/694367 

Tea/Coffee will be available from 10.15am outside the meeting room 
 

 
UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 

(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 
 
 

1. Substitutes  

2. Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this meeting.  

3. Minutes - 16 July 2009 (Pages 1 - 2) 

4. Proposed Closure of Astor of Hever (Community) School, Maidstone and its 
Replacement with a Government Funded Academy (Pages 3 - 16) 

5. Proposed Closure of Archers Court Maths and Computing College and its 
Replacement with a Government Funded Academy (Pages 17 - 26) 

6. The Future of High School Provision in Deal (Pages 27 - 38) 

 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

 
Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership 
(01622) 694002 
 
Wednesday, 30 September 2009 
 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report. 



 



 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

SCHOOL ORGANISATION ADVISORY BOARD 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the School Organisation Advisory Board held in the Darent 
Room, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Thursday, 16 July 2009. 
 
PRESENT: Mrs V J Dagger (Chairman), Mr D L Brazier, Mr C J Capon, Mr G Cooke 
(Substitute) (Substitute for Ms S J Carey), Mr M C Dance, Mr P J Homewood, 
Mr M J Northey, Mr M J Vye and Mrs S V Hohler. 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr D Adams (Area Children's Services Officer, Ashford & 
Shepway), Mr M Doole (Area Education Officer Thanet & Dover) and Mr G Mills 
(Democratic Services Manager (Executive)). 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
1. Election of Vice-Chairman  
(Item 3) 
 
Mr M Northey proposed and Mrs V Dagger seconded that Mr Peter Homewood be 
elected Vice-Chairman of the Advisory Board. 
 

Carried Unanimously 
 
2. Minutes - 21 May 2009 and 25 June 2009  
(Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meetings held on 29 May and 25 June 2009 be 
agreed as a true record. 
 
3. The Proposed Relocation of the Foreland (Community Special) School to 
the Hartsdown Technology College site  
(Item 5 - Report by Mr Grahame Ward, CFE Director – Resources) 
 
(Mr R Burgess made a declaration of having a personal interest on the grounds that 
he is a Governor at the Garlinge School) 
 
(1) This report detailed the results of the public consultation on the proposal to 
relocate Foreland School and sought the views of the Advisory Board on the issuing 
of a public notice to relocate the school to purpose built accommodation on the site of 
Hartsdown Technology College.  An additional paper was circulated at the meeting 
setting out the views of Mr Roger Gale MP. 
 
(2) Mr Doole said that the Buildings for the Future Programme would enable the 
complete re-build of both these schools to a design of the highest quality that would 
provide outstanding facilities for all pupils.  It was proposed that the two schools 
would share the same single building, creating a fully inclusive learning community 
for pupils aged 2 to 19 years with all the necessary safeguards built in.  The proposal 
was based on the desire of both schools to make available to all their pupils, the 
widest possible range of educational opportunities and create a fully inclusive 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 

learning community and co-location would make available to all students a range of 
specialist facilities and equipment to which they would not otherwise have access.  
The arrangements would also provide wider opportunities for collaborative working 
and staff development and discussions were taking place with the East Kent PCT 
and others about locating health and other agency services within the new complex, 
thereby making available specialist on site facilities for pupils and their families.   
 
(3) In response to concerns which had been expressed about possible traffic 
problems, Mr Doole said that Kent Highway Services had been fully involved with the 
planning of the project to ensure that potential traffic problems were kept to a 
minimum.  The increase in the number of students from Foreland would be offset by 
the planned reduction in the role of Hartsdown as the number of secondary aged 
students declined over the next few years.  The particular transport needs of 
Forelands pupils and any increased traffic ensuing from the development of the multi-
agency centre would also be structured particularly carefully so that the traffic 
implications were kept to a minimum. 
 
(3) Following further discussion, the Advisory Board agreed to support the issuing 
of a public notice to relocate the Forelands School from its existing site to the 
proposed site at Hartsdown and that the Cabinet Member be advised accordingly. 
 
4. Schools Applying for Foundation/Trust Status  
(Item 6 - Report by Director of Operations) 
 
RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted. 
 

Page 2



   

            
 
By: Rosalind Turner, Managing Director Children Families and 
 Education 
 

To: School Organisation Advisory Board – 8 October 2009 

Subject: PROPOSED CLOSURE OF ASTOR OF HEVER 
(COMMUNITY) SCHOOL, MAIDSTONE AND ITS 
REPLACEMENT WITH A GOVERNMENT FUNDED 
ACADEMY. 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Summary: This report seeks the views of the School Organisation 
Advisory Board on a proposal to undertake a public 
consultation on the closure of Astor of Hever 
(Community) School and its replacement with a 
government funded academy subject to Ministerial 
approval.  

Introduction 

1. (1) Astor of Hever (Community) School is a Specialist Sports College and 
admits 150 girls and boys into each year group.  Its age range is 11 to 18 years.  The 
school has the capacity to admit 869 pupils; 735 pupils into years 7 to 11 and a sixth 
form with the capacity to admit 134 boys and girls into years 12 and 13.  As at spring 
2009, the school had 568 pupils on roll in Years 7 to 11 and 93 in the sixth form, a 
total roll 661 pupils. 
 
 (2) According to Local Authority pupil place forecasting data, the number of 
years 7 to 11 pupils in the Maidstone area is predicted to fall over the next five years.  
Forecasts indicate a rise in pupils opting to remain in education post 16, but this rise is 
balanced by the reduction in overall 7 to 11 numbers.   
 
 (3) Astor of Hever is part of the Maidstone 1 Local Children’s Service 
Partnerships of schools.  It occupies a site on the Oakwood Park Campus.  See 
Appendix 1 for site map and Appendix 2 for a map showing the school site in relation to 
other schools in the area.  The school largely serves the urban community of West 
Maidstone.  Appendix 3 shows the distribution of pupils within a three mile radius.  
Appendix 4 is included to show that there are few pupils who live more than three miles 
away. 
 
 (4) The proportion of pupils with a statement of Special Educational Needs is 
2.3%, slightly above the Kent average of 2% and the National average of 2.1%. The 
proportion of pupils eligible for free school meals is 14.4%, which is above the Kent 
average of 10.7%, but well below the current National average of 23.8%.  
 
 (5) Astor of Hever has been without a substantive Headteacher since April 
2008.  The Local Authority required the school to enter into a partnership with The 
Westlands School (a high performing high school in Kent), because of its challenging 
circumstances and lack of experienced senior leadership.    Under this arrangement the 
Headteacher of Westlands School has acted as Executive Headteacher.  From 

Agenda Item 4

Page 3



   

September 2009, a new collaboration has been established for 2009/10 with Mascalls 
School.   

Academy Proposal 

2. (1) The Astor of Hever Academy will open in January 2011 in existing 
buildings and move into its new buildings in the academic year 2013-2014.  It will be a 
high performing comprehensive school for boys and girls of all abilities aged between    
11 and 19 years located on the Oakwood Park campus in West Maidstone.  The 
Academy will develop, in collaboration with neighbouring schools further and Higher 
Education Institutions, a post-16 curriculum which will directly meet local needs.   
 
 (2) The new Academy will have a strong vision, developed by the Sponsor 
(Woodard Schools) in consultation with the local community.  It will be led by an 
Executive Principal and a governing body, whose membership will be appointed by  the 
Woodard Trust, but to include additionally LA representation and staff and parent 
governors.  All pupils from Astor of Hever School will transfer over to the new Academy.  
The Academy will provide for: 
 

§ 750 pupils (aged 11-16 years) 

§ 150 post 16 pupils (aged 16-19 years) 

 
(3) Kent County Council has secured the skills and expertise of Woodard 

Schools1 as co-sponsor for the development of the Academy.  The resources of the 
Woodard group will be used to support the development of the Academy.  Woodard’s 
model of education will be the driving force behind the new academy in raising the 
expectations of young people and the local community. 

 
(4) The involvement of parents and students in their learning is central to the 

Woodard vision. The new Academy will work with parents and students to set goals, 
identify strategies for learning and develop appropriate, personalised support 
structures.   The Woodard Schools website states: 
 

“A Woodard Academy reflects the culture and vision of Woodard Schools. We 
believe that a good education should be a given but in addition each child should 
be treated as an individual, given opportunities where they can flourish and have 
the confidence and the tools needed to cope with the demands and responsibilities 
of adult life.  

Educating 27,000 pupils a year and employing over 2,500 educational colleagues, 
we have an unrivalled breadth and knowledge in education across both the private 
and state sectors. We actively welcome students and staff from all faiths or no 
faith at all, adding to the diversity and rich culture of our school communities. ” 

 

(5) Representatives of Woodard Schools have met with the governing body.  It 
was made clear that the vision for the school would be developed by Woodard in full 
consultation with all stakeholders, rather than being simply a pre-formulated one 
imposed on the school.  Woodard Schools Will bring to Astor of Hever an emphasis on 
developing in young people personal and social values, in addition to striving for high 
educational achievement.  There will be a strong focus upon meeting the needs of the 

                                                 
1
 Further information regarding Woodard Schools can be found on http://www.woodard.co.uk/index.htm 

 

Page 4



   

individual and developing the whole person.  Although Woodard Schools’ origins are in 
the Church of England, it emphasises that it welcomes members of all faiths and none, 
and that the values which it espouses are ones which are essentially common to all 
major religions and our society at large. 

(6) Woodard has links to over 40 schools and believes that the pool of 
educational expertise upon which it can draw will be of value in supporting Astor of 
Hever’s development.  However, Woodard also strongly believes that the school should 
remain part of the family of Maidstone schools, with the continuing local collaboration 
which that implies. 
 

(7) Following its meeting with representatives of Woodard Schools, Astor of 
Hever’s governing body voted unanimously for Woodard Schools to become the school’s 
academy sponsor. 
 

(8) It is probable that the academy’s specialism will be confirmed through the 
Expression of Interest process, although it may be finalised during the feasibility stage.   

Site and accommodation Issues 

3. (1) Astor of Hever’s main school building was built in 1970 and is of SEAC 
construction with steel glazed screens, brick cavity walls and flat roofs with asphalt 
coverings.  The school does not currently have an assembly hall and has five mobile 
classrooms as additional teaching facilities.  The dining facility is small and uninviting.  
The front entrance is not compliant with the Disability Discrimination Act.  The general 
consensus is that the main school building is outdated and in a poor state of repair and 
should be completely rebuilt.  There is a recently-opened building which incorporates a 
reception area, assembly hall and six classrooms.  It is anticipated that this would be 
retained in the rebuild. 
 
 (2) In September 2005, KCC acquired, on behalf of Astor of Hever School, a 
leisure facility (The Westborough Sports Centre) which is based on the same site as the 
school.  The school previously operated it under a joint use agreement with Maidstone 
Borough Council.  Community use of this building is currently being reviewed because 
it has been running at a loss to the school’s budget.  The building is considered to be 
outdated and remains a significant maintenance liability to the school.  It is expected 
that any new building will involve consultation with the local community to ascertain 
whether community aspirations may be met.  
 

 (3) Reopening Astor of Hever School in new and refurbished facilities, with a 
full suite of extended services, would serve the needs of the young people and 
community of West Maidstone and provide an environment fit for learning in the 21st 
century.   

Resource Issues 

Capital & Revenue 
 

4. (1) A budget has yet to be confirmed by the DCSF for the Academy’s 
development.  The capital costs of the scheme will be met by the DCSF. 
 
 (2) KCC will incur administrative and development costs in the period leading 
up to the opening of the Academy.  These include the costs of the appointed 
consultants.  These costs will be met out of the DCSF budget for the Academy. 
 

Page 5



   

 (3) Woodard as a multiple educational sponsor is not itself required to make a 
cash contribution to the academy.  The Woodard Trust will however have a 
responsibility for encouraging contributions into the endowment. 
 
Revenue 
 
 (4) The Academy will receive its funding directly from the DCSF each year.  It 
will be funded at a rate equivalent to other Kent specialist schools, and have a 
proportional share of the central Local Authority budget.  
 
Human 
 
   (5) Consultation will take place in accordance with the requirements of TUPE 
(Transfer of Undertakings, Protection of Employment, Regulations 1981) and the 
employment rights of all current staff who transfer to the Academy are protected. Where 
any members of staff are unable to transfer to the Academy, this will be managed in 
accordance with relevant employment policies and procedures. Any employment costs 
associated with new Academy staff are borne by the DCSF.  

Views of the Local Members 

5. (1) The local members for Maidstone Central are Mr Dan Daley and Mr 
Malcolm Robertson.  Mr Daley and Mr Robertson recognise the need for complete 
regeneration of Astor of Hever School and support in principle any means which will 
achieve this.  They will, nevertheless, wish to be consulted about detailed proposals as 
they are developed. 

School Improvement Implications 

6. (1) It was last inspected by Ofsted in April 2009 and was graded as 4 – 
inadequate.  The school was given notice to improve. Of particular concern was 
achievements and standards where it was identified that: 
 

"Standards are well below average by Year 11 and students' achievement is 
inadequate because they are not making sufficient progress between Years 7 and 
11. This is reflected in the school's GCSE examination results, which have declined 
over the past three years on almost all measures. They were exceptionally low in 
2008, with most groups of students underachieving in relation to their starting 
points. Although the results at five or more A* to C grades including English and 
mathematics were close to the school's targets, these targets were insufficiently 
challenging. The school's results in AS and A-level examinations in 2008 were well 
below average, and students underachieved in relation to their GCSE performance, 
with particular weaknesses in the results in some vocational courses. Standards 
remain well below average but, as a result of the school's actions, current students 
make satisfactory progress." 

 
The full report can be viewed at 
http://www.ofsted.gov.uk/oxedu_reports/download/(id)/109555/(as)/118795_326892.
pdf 
 
 (2) Astor of Hever has made an impressive gain of 8% in the 5A*-C including 
English and mathematics figure, based on provisional results for August 2009.  This 
still leaves the school as part of the National Challenge, but is an encouraging gain.  A 
gain of 11% in the total 5A*-C figure underlines the improvements the school is making.  

Page 6



   

Jonathan Whitcombe from Westlands school is now returning to his own school, and 
his post of Executive headteacher is being taken by Vanessa Everett from Mascalls 
School. 
 
 (3) Key Stage 3 data is currently not available. 
 
GCSE 2007 2008 2009 

5A*-C 32% 33.8% 54.7% 

5A*-C EM 24% 19.0% 27% 

Equality Issues 

 
7. (1) The development of an Academy will broaden the opportunities available to 
the young people and neighbouring community of West Maidstone. The Academy will 
need to comply with legislation regarding Disability Discrimination, Employment Law 
etc.  The proposal does not raise any particular equalities issues.  
 

(2) In 2008 (the latest data available) Astor of Hever School had 21 pupils with 
English as an additional language (3.6%).  This compares against a Kent average of 
3.6% and a National average of 10.5%.  

Transport & Environmental Impact, Including Community 
Implications 

8. (1)  Early discussions will take place with Maidstone Borough Council and 
Kent Highways.  They will be fully consulted as part of the design and development 
phase of the new Academy and it is also expected that a school travel plan will be 
produced prior to the opening of the Academy. 

Proposed Timetable 

9. Should public consultation be agreed, the following timetable is proposed: 
 

SOAB  08 October 2009 

Start of Public Consultation November 2009 

Publication of consultation document November 2009  

Public meeting November/December 2009 

Closing date for responses December 2009 

Report to School Organisation Advisory Board 20 January 2010  

Cabinet Member decision  February 2010   

Issue public notice February 2010  

End of public notice period March 2010  

Decision by Local Authority  March 2010 

Proposed implementation January 2011 

 
 
 
 

Page 7



   

 

Recommendations 

10.  The views of the School Organisation Advisory Board are sought on the proposal 
for a public consultation to be undertaken on the proposal for the closure of               
Astor of Hever (Community) School and its replacement as a government funded 
academy subject to Ministerial approval. 

 

 

Chris Jones  
Area Children’s Services Officer  
Maidstone, Tonbridge and Malling  
Tel 01233 898560 
 

The local members are Mr Dan Daley and Malcolm Robertson 

 

 
Background Documents: 
    None 

Page 8



U
P

P
E

R
 F

A
N

T

C
H

E
R

R
Y

 O
R

C
H

A
R

D

S
t 

S
im

o
n

 S
to

c
k

O
a
k

W
o

o
d

O
a
k
w

o
o

d
P

a
rk

H
ig

h
e

r 
&

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o
n

H
o
u

s
e

G
a
m

e
s

K
in

g
s
d
o

w
n

T
e

n
n

is

N
u
rs

in
g
 H

o
m

e

5
3

.6
m

5
5

.6
m

5
1

.6
m

7
2

.7
m

7
4

.2
m

5
1

.2
m

5
2

.6
m

6
2

.8
m

4
7

.8
m

4
6

.4
m

4
5

.7
m

6
4

.5
m

4
3

.4
m

6
7

.2
m

4
2

.7
m

4
1

.7
m

6
7

.7
m

4
0

.9
m

3
9

.4
m

3
0

.8
m

6
9

.3
m

7
6

.7
m

7
2

.0
m

7
0

.1
m

7
0

.6
m

7
7

.2
m

7
1

.4
m

C
la

re

7
0

.3
m

7
6

.2
m

2
9

.9
m

4
4

.8
m

2
9

.6
m

7
2

.1
m

H
a
d

lo
w

 C
o
ll
e
g

e

C
o
u

rt
s

T
h
e
 P

o
p
la

rs
 N

u
rs

in
g
 H

o
m

e

B
u

n
g
a

lo
w

S
c
ru

b
b

s
 L

a
n
e

D
e
lp

a
rk

P
in

e
 L

o
d

g
e

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

W
e

s
tb

o
ro

u
g

h

G
ra

m
m

a
r 

S
c
h
o

o
l

B
o

ro
u
g

h

G
le

n
fi
e

ld
W

e
d
g

e
w

o
o

d

P
o

n
d

Tonbridge Road

U
n
it

L
it
tl
e

 W
a

rd
e

n
s

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n

T
h

e
 D

e
ll

C
ro

x
o

n
s

B
o

w
lin

g
 G

re
e

n

F
lo

w
e

rg
a
te

T
o
n
b
ri
d
g
e
 C

o
u
rt

H
o
rt

ic
u
lt
u
ra

l
U

n
it

L
it
tl
e

O
a
k
w

o
o

d

C
o
u

rt

W
o

o
d

g
a
te

Th
e 

S
ov

er
ei

gn
s

P
H

C
a
th

o
lic

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o
l

H
ig

h
e

r 
a
n

d
 F

u
rt

h
e
r

H
e
v
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l

P
la

y
g

ro
u

n
d

A
rt

 a
n

d
D

e
s
ig

n

W
o

o
d

L
it
tle

C
o
u
rt

M
id

 K
e
n

t 
C

o
lle

g
e

A
ll

A
n
g
e
ls

' C
h
u
rc

h

K
e

n
t 
In

s
ti
tu

te

P
a

th

W
a

lk

S
P

E
L

D
H

U
R

S
T

C
O

U
R

T

C
L
O

S
E

S
t 

P
e
te

r'
s

O
R

C
H

A
R

D

F
R

E
S

H
L
A

N
D

G
R

E
E

N
W

IC
HG

R
E

E
N

W
IC

H
 C

L
O

S
E

Q
U

E
E

N
'S

W
ESTER

N

C
H

A
R

L
B

U
R

Y

Tra
ck

T
O

N
B

R
ID

G
E

P
E

N
N

Y
 C

R
E

S
S

 G
A

R
D

E
N

S

T
H

E
 S

P
IR

E
S

HARTNUP S
TREET

W
E

S
T

B
O

R
O

U
G

H

S
IS

S
IN

G
H

U
R

S
T

 D
R

IV
E

G
ID

D
Y
H

O
R

N
 L

A
N

E

WESTERN ROAD

Q
U

E
E

N
'S

 R
O

A
D

M
E

L
F

O
R

D

T
O

N
B

R
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

S
O

M
E

R
F

IE
L
D

R
O

S
E

LE
IG

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

H
A
Y

D
O

N
C

L
O

S
E

M
E

L
F

O
R

D
 D

R
IV

E

GAINSBOROUGH DRIVE

OAKWOOD COURT

W
E

S
T

M
IN

S
T
E

R
 S

Q
U

A
R

E

STANFORD DRIVE

SHAFTESBURY

H
A

Z
E

L
W

O
O

D
 D

R
IV

E

W
H
IT

M
O

R
E
 S

T
R
E
E
T

BOWER MOUNT ROAD

R
O

A
D

SHAFTESBU
RY D

RIV
E

M
IL

TO
N

 S
TR

EET

LO
W

E
R
 F

A
N
T R

O
A
D

ST M
IC

HAEL'S R
OAD

BEAVERBROOK MEWS

OAKWOODROAD

G
R

E
E

N
W

A
Y

LA
N

G
H

A
M

G
R

O
V
E

33c

15c

V
ic

a
ra

g
e

S
u

rg
e
ry

Th
e 

A
st

or
 o

f H
ev

er

1
0
7
c

O
a
k
w

o
o

d
L

o
d

g
e

Warehouse

W
ork

s

W
a

rd
 B

d
y

1

7

5

83

94

W
e

s
t 

W
o

o
d

93

6
96

5

92

4
4

91

1
4
6

377

1
3
4

8
4

421

365

2
5

5

329

2
7

8

2
2

3

81a

1
2

a

2
8

8

409

1a

1
6

5

353

2
2

1

3
7

0
3
5

8
3
4

8

4
0

1
 t
o
 6

60

2
3

9
a

1
0
7
b

1
2

0

1
1

0

2
2

5

3
4

a

195

59

61

66

5
7

265

95

2
9

4

3
1

0

3
9

7
 t
o
 1

2

1
0

0

79 to 84

1
6

to
 2

1

2
3

1

25

1
6

3

14
1

389a

to

33

18
9 

to
 1

99

P
o

s
ts

4
3

to
 4

8

55 to 60 61 to 66

3
7

2
a

1
5 11

3
0

3
5

2
2

171

2
3

7
a

2
3

7
b

3
1

2
3

72 74

234

88

3
0

0

1
to

1
2

3
7

to
 4

2

33b

258

318

285

198

210

1
0
7
a

70

30
9

207

1
7
0

219

1
6
2

1
4
2

1
3
6

22 to 27

64

4

30
7

15a

73 to 78

1
5

3

1
8

0

2
6

3

6
3

1
2

13

1
4

2
4

2
81

8

2
6

34

4
1

3
7

2

1
 t
o
 9

222

28
1

27
1

27
7

53

8

1 to
 1

1

272

79

1
4

3

58

4
3

7

1
3

0

2
1

2
9

50

46

295

49

2a

150

107

183

2

1
7

6

2
3

9

3
4

4

2
3
6

1
4
8

1
4
4

11
1

11
5

1
0
9

4 to
 8

30575
71

97

45

19

55

3
1

7
a

47

32

27

15
8

1
2
3

1
5
2

2
5

1

341

3
1

7

1
8

6

T
e

n
n

is
 C

o
u

rt
s

10

38

89

2
7

5

1
6

1
0

6

3
6

8
2

2
3

7

2
5

0

31
3

13
3

42

6
0
a

2
0

1

2
1

3

3
3

4
3
2

4

9
0

399

3
6

0

3
7

8
1

48

315

7
2

6
8

86

M
S

 (
D

e
f)

80

43

78

5
2

62

S
h

e
lt
e

r

51

2
0

3

9

5
6

96

S
to

n
e

S
u
b

S
ta

M
a
tr

ix
 H

o
u
s
e

S
t 
P

e
tr

o
c

M
a
n

s
e

T
e

n
n

is
 C

o
u

rt

T
a

n
k
s

S
u

b

L
B

H
o
s
te

l

C
h
ils

to
n

W
E

S
T

W
A

L
K

3
1

.0
m

2
5

.6
m

7
8

.3
m

6
0

.5
m

T
C

B
s

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

C
la

re
 P

a
rk

CHERRY ORCHARDWAY

H
o
te

l

P
a

v
il
io

n

ASHDOWN C
LOSE

CW

B
R

A
M

B
L
E

 C
L
O

S
E

W
A
R
D
E
N

C
o
tt

a
g

e

MALLING TERRACE

MANOR HOUSE DRIVE

MALLING TERR

S
M

T
C

B

D
o
rm

a

S
a

lt
a

s
h

S
c
ru

b
b

s

P
E

M
B

U
R

Y

P
il
la

r

H
a
ll

C
la

ir
e

m
o

re
 L

o
d

g
e

CF

The Ridge

C
R

PO

S
T
R
E
E
T

7

78

7

8

6
8

5
3

L
B

S
u

b
S

ta

15

15

8

1

1
4

59

1
2

6

27

16

P
at

h

S
h

e
lt
e

r

O
a
k
w

o
o

d
P

a
rk

3

17

8
6

9

4

W
e

s
t 

W
o

o
d

8
0

9

11

1

19

9

1

W
or

ks

3

50

22

13

4

8

11

14

25

62

3

O
a
k
w

o
o

d
P

a
rk

27

15

1
6

S
M

10

3
3

69

Chilston

1

16

31

16

S
h

e
lt
e

r

2

1

5

2
1

3

S
u

b
S

ta

1

7

1

2
7

2

8

3
8

CF

2
4

11

L
B

10

9

3

1

16

C
R

33

55

4

15
2

5

1
4

12

2

39

P
o

n
d

SM

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

1
8

SM

1

2

W
a

rd
 B

d
y

1
5

7

58

C
R

10

8

1

1
5

1

31

38

22

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

1

10

2

24

6

L
B

2
5

11

2

3
5

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

14

1
4

24

2
1

14

10

B
o

w
lin

g
 G

re
e

n

2
8

8

1
1

16

6

69

7

1
5

44

1

P
a

v
il
io

n

2
4

12

18

1
0

6

18

28

6
1
3

3

14

1
0

44

1
6

34

9

12

3
2

2

11

5
5

88

1
1

55

1

5

6

O
a
k

W
o

o
d

8

1
1

13
3

2
1

1

5

7
8

2
5

7
8

1

2

7

44

81

H
a
d

lo
w

 C
o
ll
e
g

e

2
3

14

15

8

1
0

66

2

2

1

1
5

21

3
8

O
a
k
w

o
o

d
P

a
rk

2

6
9

5

21

63

50

4

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

18

3
3

2

O
a
k
w

o
o

d
P

a
rk

20

4
1

1
5 4

6

T
e

n
n

is
 C

o
u

rt
s

1

8

10
7

T
e

n
n

is
 C

o
u

rt
s

15

1

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

O
a
k
w

o
o

d
P

a
rk

1

28

2

70

8

C
R

20

13

24

3

C
R

P
in

e
 L

o
d

g
e

3

1
1

33

2

2

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

1
6

5
0

16

31

5

1

1
2

34

69

12

1
8

2

2

1

1

275

1

3

22

2
4

Tonbrid
ge R

oad

24

23

T
e

n
n

is
 C

o
u

rt
s

L
B

2
3

9

2
1
2

CF

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

S
M

L
B

8

13

10

3

6
4

2

2

1
0

35

2

32

36

1

8

11

19

3
3

2

8
10

8

14

62

5
0

1
0

3
7

16

3
4

2
0

1

4

4
8

8

26

6
2

C
R

28

20

309

1

1
1

1

7
0

P
o

s
ts

43

31

44

36

14

2

1

2
6

E
l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

9

2
12

14

2

20

59

46

2

36

6
6

7

9

1

S
h

e
lt
e

r

83

30

2

1

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

7
0

12

P
o

n
d

4

37

P
la

y
g

ro
u

n
d

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

84

30

26

24

3
8

93

66

8

1
1

32

1

10

9

C
a
th

o
lic

 S
c
h
o

o
l

M
id

 K
e
n

t 
C

o
lle

g
e
 o

f

(A
n

n
e
x
e
)

C
o
u

rt
s

S
c
h
o

o
l

T
e

n
n

is
 &

 N
e
tb

a
ll

S
c
h
o

o
l 
F

a
rm

C
e
n

tr
e

S
p

o
rt

s
 C

e
n

tr
e

H
o
rt

ic
u
lt
u
ra

l
U

n
it

B
ro

o
k
e

W
e

s
t

C
o
u

rt

Methodist C
hurch

A
g

ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l
a

n
d

S
t 

F
ra

n
c
is

T
re

v
o

r 
G

ib
b
e

n
s

P
ri

m
a

ry

P
a

rk

o
f

o
f

E
b

o
n
y

O
a
k

S
t 
M

ic
h
a
e
l 
&

T
h

e
 A

s
to

r 
o
f

HAMBLEDON COURT

FARINGTON CLOSE

U
P

P
E

R
 F

A
N

T
 R

O
A

D

D
R

IV
E

D
R
IV

E

R
O

A
D

R
O

A
D

L
O

W
E

R
 F

A
N

T
 R

O
A

D

L
E

A
M

IN
G

T
O

N
 D

R
IV

E

KIN
G

SG
ATE

O
A

K
W

O
O

D

M
E

W
S

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

G
ro

s
v
e

n
e

r

G
id

d
yh

o
rn

L
a
n
e

85

14
5

1 
to

 3
0

33a

15b

15d

9
4

to
 9

9

76

163a

1
4

to
3

3

49 to 54

389

2
9

29

2
9

266

67

387

87
90

31
5

98

S
ta

N
o
rt

h

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

ch
oo

l

Room (U
nd)

C
a
n
te

m
e
rl
e

R
id

g
e

W
A
R
D
E
N
 C

LO
S
E

MALLING TERR

T
C

B

T
h

e
 C

o
a
c
h
 Y

a
rd

W
H

IT
M

O
R

E
P

O

L
a

n
e

C
P

C
P

C
P

P
C

P
C

T
h

e

T
h

e

E
l

E
l

E
l

E
l

P

P

P

G
A

R
D

E
N

E
S

H
L
A

N
D

R
O

A
D

ib
b
e

n
s
 U

n
it
 (

A
n
n

e
x
)

T
re

v
o

r 
G

ib
b
e

n
s
 U

n
it
 (

A
n
n

e
x
)

KNOWLTON GA

T
h

e
 C

e
d
a

rs

T
W

E
L
L

 D
R

IV
E

R
O

A
D

C
o
u

rt

P
H

P
H

15

O
a
k
w

o
o

d
P

a
rk

C
L
O

S
E

72

C
R

34

Q
U
E
E
N
'S

27

1
3
0

48

E
l 
S

u
b

 S
ta

86

1
4

H
o
u

s
e

H
al

l

53

329

20

8
4

T
O

N
B

R
ID

G
E

 R
O

A
D

L
B

W
a

rd
 B

d
y

P
H

1
8

H
o
rt

ic
u
lt
u
ra

l
U

n
it

8
8

to

H
o
u

s
e

1
3

C
L
O

S
E

9
0

B
O

W
E

R
 M

O
U

N
T

 R
O

A
D

1

26

R
O

A
D

57

W
a

rd
 B

d
y

1
5

68

3
5

8
2

3
0

29

4

L
B

W
a

rd
 B

d
y

9

R
O

AD

34

CLOSE

88

12

92

3
6

R
O

A
D

6
4

1
1

59

28

C
R

43

S
h

e
lt
e

r

3
2

1
2

5
7

3
8
0

0

5
7

3
8
0

0

5
7

4
0
0

0

5
7

4
0
0

0

5
7

4
2
0

0

5
7

4
2
0

0

5
7

4
4
0

0

5
7

4
4
0

0

5
7

4
6
0

0

5
7

4
6
0

0

5
7

4
8
0

0

5
7

4
8
0

0

1
5

5
0
0

0
1
5

5
0
0

0

1
5

5
2
0

0
1
5

5
2
0

0

1
5

5
4
0

0
1
5

5
4
0

0

1
5

5
6
0

0
1
5

5
6
0

0

1
5

5
8
0

0
1
5

5
8
0

0 B
a

s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 t

h
e
 O

rd
n
a

n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 m

a
p
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
o
f 

th
e
 C

o
n
tr

o
lle

r 
o

f 
H

e
r 

M
a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
ti
o
n

e
ry

 O
ff
ic

e
.

(C
) 

C
ro

w
n

 C
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t 

L
ic

e
n

c
e

 N
o

. 
L
A

0
7
6

7
0
8

.
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 c
o
p

y
ri

g
h

t 
K

e
n

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n
c
il

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 G
R

O
U

P
C

o
u

n
ty

 H
a

ll,
 M

a
id

s
to

n
e

K
e

n
t 
M

E
1

4
 1

X
Q

T
e
l:
0

8
4
5

8
 2

4
7
2

4
7

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
D

a
te

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
.

O
A

K
W

O
O

D
C

A
M

P
U

S

A
S

T
O

R
 O

F
 H

E
V

E
R

 O
N

L
Y

0
4
0

8
0

1
2
0

1
6
0

M
e

te
rs

1
:2

5
0

0

J
T

N
S

E
P

 2
0

0
9

T
Q

7
4

5
5
/2

6
N@

 A
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
1

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

" "

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"
"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

"

[_

S
t.

 P
e

te
r'
s
 C

.E
.P

. 
S

c
h

o
o

l

A
y
le

s
fo

rd
 S

c
h

o
o

l 
- 

S
p

o
rt

s
 C

o
lle

g
e

A
y
le

s
fo

rd
 P

ri
m

a
ry

. 
S

c
h

o
o

l

D
it
to

n
 C

E
J
 S

c
h

o
o

l
D

it
to

n
 I

n
fa

n
t 

S
c
h

o
o

l

S
a

n
d
lin

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o
l

S
t 

P
a

u
l's

 I
n

fa
n

t 
S

c
h

o
o

l

N
o
rt

h
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l

A
lli

n
g

to
n

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

P
a

la
c
e

 W
o

o
d

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l

B
a

rm
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

E
a

s
t 

F
a

rl
e

ig
h

 S
c
h

o
o

l

T
h

e
 M

a
p

le
s
d

e
n

 N
o

a
k
e

s
 S

c
h

o
o

l
M

a
id

s
to

n
e
 G

ra
m

m
a
r 

S
c
h
o

o
l 
fo

r 
G

ir
ls

B
ru

n
s
w

ic
k
 H

o
u

s
e

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l

S
t 

F
ra

n
c
is

' 
C

a
th

o
lic

 S
c
h

o
o
l,
 M

a
id

s
to

n
e

S
t.

 S
im

o
n

 S
to

c
k
 C

a
th

o
lic

 S
c
h

o
o

l

E
a

s
t 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o
l

In
v
ic

ta
 G

ra
m

m
a

r 
S

c
h

o
o

l

V
a

lle
y
 P

a
rk

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l

S
t 

J
o
h
n

's
 C

E
P

 S
c
h
o

o
l

A
rc

h
b

is
h

o
p

 C
o

u
rt

e
n

a
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

S
t 

M
ic

h
a

e
l's

 C
 o

f 
 E

 I
n

fa
n

t 
S

c
h

o
o

l
W

e
s
t 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

B
o

w
e
r 

G
ro

v
e

 S
c
h
o

o
l

O
a

k
w

o
o

d
 P

a
rk

 G
ra

m
m

a
r 

S
c
h

o
o

l

A
rc

h
b

is
h

o
p

 C
o

u
rt

e
n

a
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

M
a
id

s
to

n
e
 G

ra
m

m
a
r 

S
c
h
o

o
l

S
o

u
th

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

P
a

rk
 W

a
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

M
a

d
g

in
fo

rd
 P

a
rk

 J
u

n
io

r 
S

c
h

o
o

l

M
a

d
g

in
fo

rd
 P

a
rk

 I
n

fa
n

t 
S

c
h

o
o

l

G
re

e
n

fi
e

ld
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

O
a

k
 T

re
e

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l

M
o

le
h

ill
 C

o
p

s
e

 P
ri

m
a

ry
 S

c
h

o
o

l

S
e

n
a

c
re

 W
o

o
d

 P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l
F

iv
e

 A
c
re

 W
o

o
d

 S
c
h

o
o

l

L
o

o
s
e

 I
n

fa
n

t 
S

c
h

o
o

l

L
o
o
s
e
 J

u
n
io

r 
S

c
h
o
o
l

C
o

x
h

e
a

th
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

l

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

it
h

in
 a

 3
 m

il
e
 R

a
d

iu
s
 o

f 
T

h
e
 A

s
to

r 
o

f 
H

e
v
e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l

A
rc

M
a

p
 9

.3
.1

 -
 A

d
 H

o
c
 1

0
6

4
9

T
h

is
 m

a
p

 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

S
u

rv
e

y
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

’s
 S

ta
ti
o
n
e

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
 ©

 C
ro

w
n
 C

o
p
y
ri

g
h

t.
 

U
n

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
  

re
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

fr
in

g
e

s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
ri
g
h
t 

a
n
d
 m

a
y
 l
e

a
d
 t

o
 p

ro
s
e
c
u

ti
o
n
 o

r 
c
iv

il 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g

s
. 

1
0

0
0

1
9

2
3

8
  

2
0

0
9

L
e
g

e
n

d

R
a
d

iu
s

D
is

ta
n

c
e
 (

M
il
e
s
)

0
.0

0
 -

 1
.0

0

1
.0

0
 -

 2
.0

0

2
.0

0
 -

 3
.0

0

S
c
h

o
o

ls

T
y
p

e

"
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

"
S

e
c
o
n
d

a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

"
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

[_
T

h
e
 A

s
to

r 
o
f 
H

e
v
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

c
h
o
o
l

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
2

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

[_

P
u

p
il
s
 A

tt
e
n

d
in

g
 T

h
e
 A

s
to

r 
o

f 
H

e
v
e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l

A
rc

M
a

p
 9

.3
.1

 -
 A

d
 H

o
c
 1

0
6

4
9

T
h

is
 m

a
p

 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

S
u

rv
e

y
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

’s
 S

ta
ti
o
n
e

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
 ©

 C
ro

w
n
 C

o
p
y
ri

g
h

t.
 

U
n

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
  

re
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

fr
in

g
e

s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
ri
g
h
t 

a
n
d
 m

a
y
 l
e

a
d
 t

o
 p

ro
s
e
c
u

ti
o
n
 o

r 
c
iv

il 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g

s
. 

1
0

0
0

1
9

2
3

8
  

2
0

0
9

L
e
g

e
n

d

[_
T

h
e
 A

s
to

r 
o
f 
H

e
v
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

c
h
o
o
l

R
a
d

iu
s

D
is

ta
n

c
e
 (

M
il
e
s
)

0
.0

0
 -

 1
.0

0

1
.0

0
 -

 2
.0

0

2
.0

0
 -

 3
.0

0

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
3

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

! !
!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

! !

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! !
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!
! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!
!

!

! !
!

!
!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

! !
! !

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
! !

!

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!! !

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

[_

P
u

p
il
s
 A

tt
e
n

d
in

g
 T

h
e
 A

s
to

r 
o

f 
H

e
v
e
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

c
h

o
o

l

A
rc

M
a

p
 9

.3
.1

 -
 A

d
 H

o
c
 1

0
6

4
9

T
h

is
 m

a
p

 i
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 u

p
o

n
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

S
u

rv
e

y
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

H
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

’s
 S

ta
ti
o
n
e

ry
 O

ff
ic

e
 ©

 C
ro

w
n
 C

o
p
y
ri

g
h

t.
 

U
n

a
u

th
o

ri
s
e

d
  

re
p

ro
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

fr
in

g
e

s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
ri
g
h
t 

a
n
d
 m

a
y
 l
e

a
d
 t

o
 p

ro
s
e
c
u

ti
o
n
 o

r 
c
iv

il 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g

s
. 

1
0

0
0

1
9

2
3

8
  

2
0

0
9

L
e
g

e
n

d

[_
T

h
e
 A

s
to

r 
o
f 
H

e
v
e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

c
h
o
o
l

R
a
d

iu
s

D
is

ta
n

c
e
 (

M
il
e
s
)

0
.0

0
 -

 1
.0

0

1
.0

0
 -

 2
.0

0

2
.0

0
 -

 3
.0

0

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
4

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



  

   

 

By: Rosalind Turner, Managing Director, Children Families and 
 Education 
  

To: School Organisation Advisory Board – 8 October 2009 

Subject: PROPOSED CLOSURE OF ARCHERS COURT MATHS 
AND COMPUTING COLLEGE AND ITS REPLACEMENT 
WITH A GOVERNMENT FUNDED ACADEMY 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Summary: 
This report seeks the views of the School Organisation 
Advisory Board on a proposal to undertake a Public 
Consultation on the closure of Archers Court Maths and 
Computing College in order that it may be replaced with 
a government funded Academy. 

Introduction 

1. (1) Archers Court Maths and Computing College is an 11 – 18 mixed non – 
selective school with 809 students on roll at 11 – 16 and a sixth form of 171. The School 
serves the needs of students living within Dover Town as well as some of the 
surrounding villages. In addition the school has a specialist unit, Aspen 2 which caters 
for students with Profound, Severe and Complex needs.  A dot map showing the home 
location of students is attached as Appendix 1.  
 
 
 (2) In 2008, the percentage of pupils at Archers Court gaining 5 A* - C grades 
or equivalent was 47.5% reflecting a continuing improvement in performance since 
2005. Nevertheless in 2008 the numbers of students achieving 5 A* - C including 
English and Mathematics was 21.9%, placing the school in the National Challenge 
category. Where a school is performing below 30% 5 A* - C and is unlikely to achieve 
that level of attainment by 2011, the Local Authority is required to consider a structural 
solution which will enable the school to secure and sustain the necessary long term 
improvement. Establishing an academy to replace the existing school represents 
potentially a structural solution within the criteria set out by the Department for 
Children, Schools and Families. 

Background 

2. (1) Archers Court Maths & Computing College, is a good school with 
significant strengths. However, there is recognition that attainment levels will only be 
significantly improved and sustained if a structural solution is implemented. The DCSF 
identifies the following as possible structural solutions. 
  

Closure 
Amalgamation 
Federation with a high performing school 
Replacement by a trust school or a National Challenge Trust School 
Replacement by an Academy 

  
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 17



  

   

(2) Closure and dispersal of students elsewhere is not an option. There is 
insufficient capacity in other schools to accommodate the students who would be 
displaced and the strengths of the existing school would be lost. 

 
(3) Given the size, location and profile of other local schools amalgamation is 

not an option. 
 

(4) Federation with a high performing school is a theoretical option however 
this would fail to secure the formal engagement and leadership of Canterbury Christ 
Church University, nor would it provide the flexibilities which come with academy 
status. 
 

(5) The establishment of a Trust school or National Challenge Trust school 
would potentially be an option, assuming that an external partner could be found to 
play a leading role in the Trust. However, in itself this would not address the 
infrastructure issues or provide some of the potential advantages associated with 
academy status. 

 
(6) The establishment of an academy would provide a radical solution which 

would enable the school maximum flexibility in organising and tailoring its curriculum 
offer according to local needs and circumstances. It would also deliver a substantial new 
build, providing first class learning facilities for all students. This option is strongly 
supported by the existing leadership and governing body of the school. 

The Proposal  

3. (1) An Academy in Dover would be established following the necessary closure 
of Archers Court. An Expression of Interest was lodged with the DCSF, who in July 
2009 agreed that the proposal move to the feasibility stage.  Appleyards have been 
appointed as project managers and will oversee a separate consultation process on the 
establishment of the new academy, which will take place in the autumn potentially in 
parallel with the Local Authority consultation on school closure. The Local Authority 
retains responsibility for consultation on the linked closure of the existing school. 
  
 (2) The proposal is to create a co-education, five form entry Academy in Dover 
catering for 750 11-16 year old students and 200 16-19 year old students. The Academy 
will replace the Archers Court Maths & Computing College and the name of the 
Academy will be decided during feasibility.  It is proposed that the Aspen 2 Unit will 
remain part of the school and transfer to the Academy. The Academy will be sponsored 
by Canterbury Christ Church University as lead sponsor, with Kent County Council, 
Dover Grammar School for Boys and Dover Grammar School for Girls as co-sponsors.  
Canterbury Christ Church University is a highly respected Higher Education provider 
with a wealth of ideas and experience to contribute including considerable strength in 
the area of staff and student development. Dover Grammar School for Boys is a 
specialist Business & Enterprise School. Dover Grammar School for Girls is a 
Humanities College.  Both schools have an excellent record in developing high quality 
education provision and a detailed knowledge of the local communities in Dover.  
Collectively, the Sponsors and partners are able to draw on extensive skills and 
expertise in the fields of education, research, business and organisational leadership.  
 
 (3) It is proposed that the Academy will open in September 2010 in existing 
buildings with a target occupation of new buildings in September 2013. The Sponsors’ 
ambition for the Academy is for it to be a learning community at the heart of Dover, 
bringing together education and children’s services, which places students and their 
families at the centre of everything that the Academy does. The Academy would be 

Page 18



  

   

focussed on the five Every Child Matters (ECM) outcomes for children and young people, 
within the context of the Children's Trust arrangements in Kent.   
 
 (4) The Academy would seek to provide: 
  

• specialist status and centre of excellence quality for Mathematics & 
Computing and Music; 

• a good academic/vocational balance, with full coverage of the four core 
National Curriculum subjects; 

• an 11-19 age range with innovative partnerships with the two Grammar 
Schools to deliver the 14-19 curriculum; 

• a focused early intervention to improve students’ capabilities and address 
their particular needs; 

• a local collaborative partnership with the two Grammar Schools that will 
promote high quality teaching and build economies of scale by sharing 
teaching staff in subject shortage areas. 

 
 (5) The Sponsors, working in a dynamic partnership, will establish and 
develop a robust governance that draws on a wide ranging base of expertise.  This 
strong leadership will seek to ensure that the Academy achieves good outcomes for 
students.  The Sponsors will seek to develop an Academy that promotes a new model of 
learning that: 
 

• links the acquisition of knowledge directly to the experience of the world; 

• brings together people from different places to exchange ideas and skills; 

• promotes enterprise for wealth creation and active citizenship; 

• gives responsibility to students as citizens for the conduct of their lives, 
relationships and learning.   

 
 (6) It is proposed that the Aspen II unit, currently part of Archers Court 
Maths & Computing College be retained as part of the new Academy. 

Site Issues 

4. (1) Archers Court is located on an extensive site which would enable the new 
build to be developed, away from the existing school buildings, minimising disruption to 
students.  See appendix 2. 
 
 (2) There are some relatively new buildings and facilities on the Archers Court 
site which could potentially be assimilated into the new Academy design subject to 
feasibility. 

Resource Issues 

Capital & Revenue 
 
5. (1) A budget has yet to be confirmed by the DCSF for the Academy’s 
development.  The capital costs of the scheme will be met by the DCSF.  
  
 (2) Appleyards, the appointed management consultants, will receive funding 
from the DCSF to cover feasibility costs. 
 
 (3) Canterbury Christ Church University as a multiple educational sponsor is 
not itself required to make a cash contribution to the Academy.  Christ Church will 
however have a responsibility for encouraging contributions into the endowment. 

Page 19



  

   

 
 (4) The Dover Academy Trust (name to be determined during feasibility) will 
receive its funding directly from the DCSF each year.  It will be funded at a rate 
equivalent to other Kent specialist schools, and have a proportional share of the central 
Local Authority budget. 
 
Human 
 
 (5) Consultation would take place in accordance with the requirements of 
TUPE (Transfer of Undertakings, Protection of Employment, Regulations 1981). Costs of 
new staffing (TUPE applies to current staff) and costs associated with TUPE, including 
any valid termination of employment for staff that cannot transfer or be deployed 
elsewhere in Kent schools, would be negotiated with the DCSF on a case by case basis. 
  
 (6) There is a statutory requirement to recruit the Academy principal via a 
competitive recruitment process following national advertisement.  The existing 
headteacher is eligible to apply for the post should she choose to do so. 

Views of the Local Member 

6. Mr Bryan Cope, the Local Member, is of the view that the proposal is an 
opportunity to acquire state of the art facilities for a local school.  He is in favour of 
proceeding to consultation on the proposal.    

Views of the Governing Body 

7. The governing body has been consulted and understand the reasons for the 
proposal.  The governors fully support the option of replacing the school with a 
government funded Academy.  

Views of the Local Children Service Partnership Board 

8. The Partnership has been consulted and is of the view that the aims of the 
Archers Court proposal are broadly in line with the objectives of the board.   

School Improvement Implications 

9. (1)  The closure of the school to provide for the establishment of an 
Academy would lead to new ‘state of the art’ facilities, curriculum innovation, together 
with the recruitment and retention of high quality staff. The significant contribution of 
the sponsors in supporting school improvement plus investment in facilities and the 
curriculum and funding flexibility that the Academy would bring, would have a positive 
impact on current and future standards of attainment. 
 

(2) Archers Court Maths and Computing College was last inspected in 

September 2007 and graded as “good” with all members of staff “focused on raising 

standards whilst providing thoughtful and attentive care for every student”.  “From well 

below average starting points, many students achieve well, particularly in Years 7 to 9, 

and do better than predicted in their GCSEs in Year 11. Standards in all years are 

below average but they have improved considerably over the past four years”. 

 

Page 20



  

   

(3) As a ‘wide – ability’ school a new academy would have the capacity to 

meet the needs of a broad ability spectrum with a potentially positive impact in raising 

overall standards. 

Equality Issues 

10. There are no specific equality implications arising from this proposal. 

Transport & Environmental Impact, Including Community 
Implications 

11. The establishment of an academy as a 5 form entry school to replace the existing 
school in its current buildings will have minimal impact in the short term.  The new 
academy will actually be smaller than the existing school, reflecting the impact of falling 
secondary school rolls in the area. The planning and construction of new buildings will 
involve consultation with planners on transport and the environment amongst other 
issues. 

Proposed Timetable 

 12.       
SOAB 1 meeting     8 Oct 2009 
Consultation period    19 October to 30 November 2009 
Public meeting     week commencing 2 November 2009 
SOAB 2 meeting     3 December 2009 
Decision by Cabinet Member   21 December 2009 
Public Notice Period    14 January to 25 February 2010 
Decision by Cabinet Member   5 March 2010 
Referral to Adjudicator (if required)  2 April 2010 
Adjudicator decision (if required)  17 May 2010 
Implementation     September 2010 

 

Recommendations 

 

13. The views of the School Organisation Advisory Board are sought on undertaking 

a public consultation on a proposal to close Archers Court Maths and Computing 
College to be replaced with a government funded Academy. 

 

 

Martyn Doole 
Area Children’s Services Officer 
Thanet & Dover 
 (01227) 284407 
     

 
 

The Local Member is Mr Bryan Cope 

 

Background Documents:    None   

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!

!

! !!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!
!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

[_

Walmer Science College

Castle Community School

The Harvey Grammar School

Sandwich Technology School

Sir Roger Manwood's School

Astor College for the Arts

St Edmund's Catholic School

Folkestone School for Girls

Dover Grammar School for Boys

Pent Valley Technology College

Dover Grammar School for Girls

Archers Court Maths & Computing College

Pupil Dot Map of Archers Court Maths & Computing College

Legend

! Nearby Secondary Schools

[_ Archers Court Maths & Computing College

! Pupils

Radii (Miles)

0 - 1

1 - 2

2 - 3

Management Information
Sharing information for better outcomes

GH - Ad Hoc 10772
Please note there are 6 pupils not showing on this map.  

These pupils are located in Newington, Whitstable, 
Ashford (1 each) and Thanet (3).

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance
Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised  reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings. 100019238  2009

Appendix 1

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
2

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



  

   

 

By: Rosalind Turner, Managing Director, Children, Families and 
 Education 

 
To: School Organisation Advisory Board – 8 October 2009 

Subject: THE FUTURE OF HIGH SCHOOL PROVISION IN DEAL 

Classification: Unrestricted 

Summary: This report seeks the views of the School Organisation 
Advisory Board on the need for a public consultation on 
the future of High School provision in the Deal area. 

Introduction 

1. (1) There are currently two High Schools located in Deal which serve 
principally the Deal and Walmer communities. Castle Community College and Walmer 
Science College have a common catchment area, although the schools themselves are 
located 1.18 miles from each other in Deal and Walmer respectively (see Appendices 1 
and 2).  
 

(2) The prospect of falling secondary school rolls across the area over the next 
few years poses a significant challenge to the viability of the two schools as separate 
stand-alone institutions. In January 2009 Castle Community College had 533 students 
at 11-16 with a sixth form of 128. Walmer Science College had 671 at 11-16 with a 
sixth form of  125.  By January 2018 with the impact of falling secondary school rolls, 
these numbers are predicted to fall, with Castle forecast to have 478 at 11-16 and 92 in 
the 6th Form, and Walmer 509 at 11-16 and a 6th form of 100.  
 

(3) Secondary schools of less than 4 forms of entry (600 students at 11 – 16) 
face considerable challenges in delivering a broad and balanced curriculum which offers 
optimum student choice and diversity while making cost effective use of resources. 

 
(4) Schools in the Dover District, including those in Deal and Walmer, stand 

to benefit from substantial capital investment through Wave 5 of the Building Schools 
for the Future (BSF) programme. In order to secure optimum capital investment which 
will benefit all students, the Local Authority is required to consider cost effective school 
organisation solutions which will improve education outcomes, secure viable long term 
provision and make best use of available resources.    

Background 

2. (1) Both Walmer Science College and Castle Community College are good 
schools which serve their communities well. The challenge is to secure viable long term 
provision which will enable standards to be maintained and improved against a 
background of falling rolls with consequential reductions in student numbers, funding 
and staffing if action is not taken now. 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 27



  

   

(2) Walmer Science College was last inspected in November 2007.  It was 
judged “a good school with some outstanding features.”  “All aspects of the school’s 
provision are improving rapidly.”  “Students achieve well throughout the school.  
Standards are below national averages, but students make faster progress than in most 
other schools.” Walmer Science College achieved 36% 5 A* – C, including English and 
mathematics in 2008 and 37% 5 A* - C, including English and mathematics in 2009. 

  
(3)  Castle Community College was last inspected in November 2007.  It was 

judged “an outstanding school….students make excellent progress in their studies.”  
“Students enter the school with well below average standards”.. but leave with “a well 
above average percentage of 5 A*-C grades.”  “The compulsory vocational courses in 
Year 10 and 11 contribute to the school’s success.  The curriculum is outstanding as it 
is relevant to students’ interests and, in the light of job opportunities, to their future 
training and education.” Although technically a National Challenge School, Castle 
Community College achieved 33% 5 A* - C, including English and mathematics in 2008 
and 33.3% 5 A* - C, including English and mathematics in 2009. 

 
 (4) Standards at both schools are potentially in jeopardy over the medium- 
long term if action is not taken to address the issue of falling rolls. Forecasts based on 
actual roll data for January 2009, suggest that by 2018/19, (the end of the current BSF 
planning time frame) both schools would be operating well below 4 FE. Inevitably this 
would be likely to pose financial, organisational and curriculum pressures, constraining 
the educational offer to students. In addition the Local Authority is unlikely to secure 
optimum capital investment in two separate institutions which serve the same 
community and which between them have a school population at 11 – 16 of less than 
1000 pupils. 

The Proposal 

3. (1) To undertake a public consultation on the future of High School provision 
in Deal. This would include, effectively, the amalgamation of Castle Community College 
and Walmer Science College by closing the existing two schools and establishing a new 
successor school, if possible in September 2010. All students who are attending the two 
predecessor schools at the point at which the new school is established would be 
guaranteed a place at the new school should they need one. 
  

(2) The new school could be established either as a Trust school working with 
an external partner(s) to raise standards or by means of a competition. The governing 
bodies of Castle Community College and Walmer Science College have indicated that 
they wish to explore the possibility of setting up a Trust School. If the Local Authority 
supports such a proposal an application could be made by the putative trust to the 
Secretary of State for exemption from the competition requirement, in which case the 
Local Authority could agree and implement the proposal. There would still be 
consultation on the proposal but a decision could be secured more quickly than via the 
competition route. The timescales for each route are shown at Appendix 3. 
 

(3) In coming to a decision the Secretary of state will consider: 
 

• Existing range of local provision – types of schools, size, specialisms etc 

• Local standards 

• Whether there is an urgent need for the new school 

• Parental preferences  
  

 (4) The Local authority itself could apply to the Secretary of State for 
exemption from the competition requirement under Section 10 of the Education and 

Page 28



  

   

Inspections Act 2006 (see Appendix 4).  However, there is a presumption against the 
establishment of new Community Schools, without a competition process and such an 
exemption is unlikely to be granted. 

Site Issues 

4. (1) The Castle Community College site is larger than the Walmer Science 
College site and already has significant community use. The proposed site for a new 
successor school is therefore the Castle Community College site which would be 
substantially redeveloped with a significant new build, through the BSF programme. 
  
 
 (2) Walmer Science College has some good quality new building stock as well 
as other less suitable accommodation. Subject to the outcome of the consultation and 
decisions yet to be taken by elected members, part of the Walmer Science College site 
could be retained for development as a vocational centre for all schools in the Dover 
District, while some of the site could be declared surplus. This would form an aspect for 
future consultations but no decisions have yet been taken. 

 (3) The proposal envisages the potential establishment of a new Foundation 
Trust school in advance of the development of the Castle site.  It is currently envisaged 
that BSF would deliver new accommodation by 2013.  Until that time the new Trust 
school, if Trust Status is approved by KCC and the DCSF, would operate under a single 
leadership and governance regime but on the two existing sites. 

Resource Issues 

Capital & Revenue 
 
5. (1) A new school of 7FE would achieve long term viability in terms of revenue 
funding. Consolidation of High School provision in Deal onto a single site would enable 
the Local authority to make optimum cost effective use of available resources and 
maximise capital investment in new school infrastructure, providing a first class 
learning environment for all students. 
 
Human 
 
 (2) A new trust school would require the establishment of a single governing 
body and the appointment of a single headteacher to lead the school.  Recruitment to 
the post of headteacher would require a competitive recruitment process and national 
advertisement. 
 
 (3) There would be some efficiencies  arising from consolidation on a single 
site but it is not possible to quantify these at the current time. Falling rolls poses a 
significant risk to jobs. Amalgamation offers the potential to align staffing establishment 
with pupil numbers in a coherent and managed way. 
 
 (4) Staff employed by each of the two predecessor schools at the point at 
which the new trust school comes into being would be entitled to transfer to the new 
school via TUPE arrangements. 
 

Page 29



  

   

Views of the Local Members 

6. (1) The Local Members are Mr Kit Smith and Mrs Julie Rook whose views are 
as follows: 
 
Mrs Julie Rook 
 
“I fully support the amalgamation of Walmer Science College and Castle Community 
College.  Both boards of governors meet regularly and have been working together 
already for many years to deliver shared Post 16 education across both sites and can 
both see the value of a full merger.  Neither school will be able to survive falling rolls and 
the Castle Community College building has little life left, so will, in the near future, require 
massive investment.  Both schools are performing very well, but amalgamation will 
improve sharing of best practices and cost savings through economies of scale as well as 
further raised academic standards across the board as the school will aim to excel.  
Pupils will also be taught in a state of the art building giving young people the pride and 
aspiration that will improve the overall educational offer.  The plan also for a vocational 
provision on the Walmer site is to be welcomed.  Walmer College is the perfect site for a 
broad educational offer including vocational provision and possibly adult education as  
Deal simply does not currently have these facilities, and young people find themselves 
having to travel out of town to Dover, Folkestone, Ashford and Canterbury to further their 
education.  Deal is a large town in its own right with over 30,000 people.  Having to travel 
many miles to access Post 16 education is totally unacceptable and as Walmer station is 
so very close to the current Walmer site, developing the potential of the site would attract 
people in from outlying villages and towns.  Being the Kent County Councillor for the 
division of Deal, I of course want the best for Deal, and believe that this project will not 
only meet my aspiration and that of the community, but also the aspiration of Kent 
County Council who I believe also want to deliver the very best education they possibly 
can, making our local school the number one choice for local people.  The people of Deal 
need to have access to a broad range of educational provision at 11-18 and beyond, 
providing the educational attainment skills and training to keep local people in local jobs.  
It will bring business and money into the town and into the wider district and would most 
definitely put Deal on the map.  I do however realise that there may be differing views on 
this proposed amalgamation and wholly approve of the Council seeking to consult.” 
 
Mr Kit Smith 
 
“I have heard the well argued and what would appear to be a logical case for the 
proposal to amalgamate Walmer Science College and Castle Community College.  
However, it is essential that there is ample opportunity for a wide and genuine 
consultation on the proposals, as there are almost certainly valid and differing views and 
arguments that must be considered.  I approve of the proposed consultation.” 

Views of the Governing Body 

7.  Both governing bodies have resolved to explore the implications of establishing a 
Trust school, working with the Local Authority and external partners to address future 
challenges. They will submit a formal view as part of the consultation process. 

Views of the Local Children’s Services Partnership Board 

8.   The Partnership Board has been briefed on the proposal and recognises the 
issues facing secondary school organisation in Deal in the near future.  The Board 
welcomes the opportunity for consultation. 

Page 30



  

   

School Improvement Implications 

9.  Allowing the roll of both schools to decline significantly would threaten the 
viability of both institutions which would make it difficult to maintain standards as 
pupil numbers, funding and staffing levels diminish. The establishment of a new Trust 
School would potentially engage the support of one or more external partners in 
working with governors and staff of the new school to raise standards.  

Equality Issues 

10.  A new school would serve the same catchment as the two exiting institutions and 
would continue to provide high quality non – selective education for its students. Given 
the nature of the proposal and the profile of the two existing schools, there are no 
adverse implications for any minority groups distinguishable by race, gender, ethnicity, 
disability, religious conviction, social, economic backgrounds or sexual orientation.  

Transport & Environmental Impact, Including Community 
Implications 

11.  The establishment of one larger school based on one site in place of two schools 
in separate locations will result in a significant reduction in school related traffic in the 
Walmer area.  There will be an increase in traffic in the Mill Hill area of Deal, and a new 
Travel Plan will need to be agreed in consultation with Transport. 

Proposed Timetable 

12.  The timetable will depend on whether or not the two governing bodies working 
with an external partner(s) decide to submit a proposal for Foundation Trust status, 
whether or not the Secretary of State grants exemption from competition for a proposal 
for a new Trust School initiated by both governing bodies and whether or not the 
Cabinet Member decides to support a Trust School proposal or prefers to initiate a 
competition to establish the new school.  Appendix 3 outlines the possible timelines for 
all scenarios. 

 

Recommendations 
 

13. That a public consultation is undertaken to seek views on the future of High 
School provision in the Deal area. 

 

 

Martyn Doole 
Area Children’s Services Officer   
Dover & Thanet 
01227 284407 

 

 
The Local Members are: 
 
Mrs Julie Rook and Mr Kit Smith 

 

 
Background Documents:   
     None  

Page 31



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

[_

Walmer Science College

Castle Community School

Sandwich Technology School

Sir Roger Manwood's School

Astor College for the Arts

St Edmund's Catholic School

Dover Grammar School for Boys

Dover Grammar School for Girls

Archers Court Maths & Computing College

Pupil Dot Map of Castle Community School

Legend

! Nearby Secondary Schools

[_ Castle Community School

! Pupils

Radii (Miles)

0 - 1

1 - 2

2 - 3

Management Information
Sharing information for better outcomes

GH - Ad Hoc 10772
Please note there are 10 pupils not showing on this map.  

These pupils are located in Herne Bay, Canterbury 
Aylesham, Birchington, Margate (1 each),  

Faversham (2) and Ramsgate (3)

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance
Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised  reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings. 100019238  2009

Appendix 1

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



!

!

!

! !
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!
!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

[_
Walmer Science College

Castle Community School

Sandwich Technology School

Sir Roger Manwood's School

Astor College for the Arts

St Edmund's Catholic School

Dover Grammar School for Boys

Dover Grammar School for Girls

Archers Court Maths & Computing College

Pupil Dot Map of Walmer Science College

Legend

! Nearby Secondary Schools

[_ Walmer Science College

! Pupils

Radii (Miles)

0 - 1

1 - 2

2 - 3

Management Information
Sharing information for better outcomes

GH - Ad Hoc 10772
Please note there are 6 pupils not showing on this map.  

These pupils are located in Newchurch, Dymchurch, 
Broadstairs, Cliftonville (1 each) and Folkestone (2).

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance
Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised  reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings. 100019238  2009

Appendix 2

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Possible timelines for the proposed amalgamation of Walmer Science College & Castle Community College  
 

SOAB 1 meeting 8 October 2009 

Consultation period 2 November to 14 December 
2009 

Public meetings Week commencing 19 November 

SOAB Briefing 24 November 2009 

Governors apply for exemption 4 January 2010 

SOAB 2 meeting 7 January 2010 

 

Cabinet Member decision to 
support Trust School proposal 
or initiate a competition 

February 2010 Issue invitation to bid 
notice 
     1st Public Notice 

25 February 2010 

Rejected 
Exemption granted or rejected 15 

February 
2010  

Granted and 
approved by 
Cabinet Member 

Public notice expires 25 June 2010 

Proposed consultation period 22 February to 6 April 2010 
Issue 2nd Public Notice and 
closure notice 

15 July 2010 

Proposer publishes public 
notice to establish new school 
and LA publishes closure notice 

22 April 2010 Public meeting 20 July 2010 

Public Notices expires 3 June 2010 Public Notice expires 25 August 2010 

Refer to Adjudicator for a 
decision if LA has 
submitted a proposal 

by 8 September 2010 Cabinet Member decision on 
proposal and closures 

14 June 2010 

Adjudicator decision November 2010 

Implementation September 2010 Implementation September 2011 

New Buildings available on 
Castle site 

By September 2013      

 

Appendix 3 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



P
a
g
e
 3

8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 16 July 2009
	4 Proposed Closure of Astor of Hever (Community) School, Maidstone and its Replacement with a Government Funded Academy
	Item 4 - Appendix 1
	Item 4 - Appendix 2 Astor of Heaver School Dot Map
	Item 4 - Appendix 3 Astor of Heaver School Pupil Dot Map
	Item 4 - Appendix 4 Astor of Heaver School Pupil Dot Map All Students

	5 Proposed Closure of Archers Court Maths and Computing College and its Replacement with a Government Funded Academy
	Item 5 - Appendix 1
	Item 5 - Appendix 2 Site Plan

	6 The Future of High School Provision in Deal
	Item 6 - Appendix 1Castle Community School
	Item 6 - Appendix 2 Walmer Science College
	Item 6 - Appendix 3 timeline proposal incl competition Adjudictor decision


